
 
 

Schools Forum 
 

PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING 
 

 Wednesday 20th January 2021 
at 4.00 pm 

 
Microsoft Teams: https://bit.ly/2Vq3lLR 

 
This meeting is open to the public 

 
  
  
  
 LEAD OFFICER 

Derek Wiles 
Service Lead, Education 

 Tel : 023 8083 4731 
Email: SchoolsForum.Admin@southampton.gov.uk 

  

 CONTACT 

 Meeting Support 
 
Tel: 023 8083 2557 
Email: SchoolsForum.Admin@southampton.gov.uk 
 

 

Public Document Pack

https://bit.ly/2Vq3lLR
mailto:SchoolsForum.Admin@southampton.gov.uk
mailto:SchoolsForum.Admin@southampton.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 

 

 
 
1   WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 
 Welcome and introductions by Chair, John Draper  

 
2   APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

 
3   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 9TH DECEMBER 2020 (Pages 1 - 10) 

 
4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct, 

Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the 
agenda for this meeting. 
 

NOTE:  Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the 
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic 
Support Officer. 

 
5   STANDING ITEM: LA UPDATE ON DFE/EFA FUNDING  

 
6   HIGH NEEDS DEFICIT CONSULTATION UPDATE  

 
7   DSG FUNDING 2021 / 22  

 
8   AOB  

 



 

1 
 

 
 

SCHOOLS FORUM 
PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING 

Wednesday 25th November 2020 
at 4.00 pm – 6.00 pm 

 
Virtual Teams Conference 

 
 

This meeting is open to the public 

     LEAD OFFICER 
     Derek Wiles 
     Service Lead, Education 
                             
     Tel:  023 8083 4731 
     Email: SchoolsForum.Admin@southampton.gov.uk  

     CONTACT 

     Meeting Support 
 
     Tel:  023 8083 2557 
     Email: SchoolsForum.Admin@southampton.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

Attended: 

Chair and Vice Chair 
John Draper Headteacher, Swaythling Primary School 

Harry Kutty Headteacher, Cantell School 

Primary School Representatives  

Amanda Talbot-Jones Headteacher, St Deny’s Primary School 

Peter Howard Headteacher, Fairisle Junior School 

Mike Adams Headteacher, Bitterne Manor Primary School 

Primary Governor 

Mac McBride Governor, Banister Primary School 

Ross Williams Governor, Mason Moor Primary School 

Secondary School Representatives 

James Henderson Woodlands Community College 

Special Schools Representatives  

Maria Smith Headteacher, Vermont School  

Luisa Whittick  Headteacher, Compass School  

Academy Representatives  

James Rouse Headteacher, St Anne’s Catholic School 

Sean Preston Chief Financial Officer, Hamwic Trust 

Non School Representatives 

Rob Sanders Diocesan Rep., Diocese of Winchester & Portsmouth 

SCC Officers 

Derek Wiles Service Lead – Education 

Nick Persson Finance Business Partner for Education 

Clodagh Freeston Service Manager – Education Strategy, Planning and Improvement  

Tammy Marks Service Manager – Special Educational Needs and Disability, Children 
and Families 

Áine Rand Meeting Support (minutes) 

  

Page 2



 

3 
 

 
 

 

MINUTES 

1 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chair welcomed the forum to the December’s extraordinary meeting and noted that 
the meeting was called to look at the issues around the High Needs block and to gather 
the forums thoughts to feed into the consultation. The following apologies were noted: 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

 To note apologies and changes in membership 

Apologies were noted as follows: 

Cllr Paffey Councillor, Cabinet Member Aspiration, School and Lifelong learning 

Colin Grant Governor, Cedar School 

Cllr Lisa Mitchell Councillor for Portswood Ward 

Martin Brown Principal of Oasis Academy Sholing  

Anne Downie Early Years Manager 

Anna Wright Owner - Paint Pots Nursery  
 

 

 

 

3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Changes in membership 
 None 
 
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING – 25th November 2020 
 
The minutes were noted as an accurate reflection of the previous meeting.  

Action review from the previous meeting 

 NP to redistribute the policy information to members. Action Completed 
 
 
 

4 

 

 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members 
to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the agenda for 
this meeting. 
  

Page 3



 

4 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:  Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the 
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Meeting 
Support Officer. 
 
JD advised that a Secondary School Governor Rep. was required although the balance 
remains with the Primary Schools. JD suggested that the Secondary Schools nominate a 
Secondary Governor Rep.   
 
 
 
HIGH NEEDS DEFICIT WORKING PARTY UPDATE (TM) 
 Papers for Information and discussion 

 
TM gave an overview of the discussions from the high needs meeting and requested 
Schools Forum thoughts moving forward as part of the consultation. The High Needs 
working party was set up to make recommendations to Schools Forum and was made up 
of reps from both Schools Forum and schools across the city to look at  
 Firstly: The pressure on the High Needs budget that has accrued deficits of 9.3M.  
 Secondly: the historic lack of transparency around how the High Needs budget is 

used.  
 
The working party looked at the increasing complexity of need in the city. In 2014 the 
government brought in new reforms around SEND that extended the rights of pupils to 
have EHC plans from 0-25 years. Southampton traditionally sat below the national 
average for those children statements. At that time Southampton had 790 statements of 
SEN and today it has approximately 1,800 statements. This is a significant increase in the 
number of children with an EHC plan therefore, there is an increase on spend per head 
that follows the child into mainstream schools and equally there is a demand on special 
schools due to the complexity of needs. 
 
From a cost avoidance perspective SCC has spent time, money and effort investing in 
additional places in the special schools to prevent the cost of the independent 
placements outside the city. 
 
The working group went thought various issues and the figures were demonstrated. They 
looked at the current spend on High Needs comparatively to the neighbouring local 
authorities. TM advised that the figure in Southampton is not as shocking as it is for those 
other local authorities. Southampton Local Authority are keeping the number of children 
placed outside the city low although they recognise that they can do more to decrease 
this. The group spoke in detail regarding the historical issues that led to the pressure in 
that budget, this was illustrated in the circulated PowerPoint. 
 
TM contextualised the screen shared PowerPoint and noted that the number of 
complexity of SEND is increasing in the city. In 2016/17 the NFF put a cap on High Needs 
and that in turn has put financial pressure on the High Needs budget and the deficit for 
2020/2021 is 9.3M, this had a detrimental impact on SCC finances. The DFE recognised 
the High Needs pressure nationally and provided funding increases over a 3 year period to 
LA’s to get the High Needs budget to an in year balance position with a view that LA’s 
would resolve this. Measurements are in place to manage the need to support the deficit 
plan. It was identified in the meeting that the top up rates for special schools were out of 

Page 4



 

5 
 

line and needed rebasing. The Polygon School and Great Oakes School are not in line with 
their feeder schools. 
 
The recommendations were to discuss the findings in this meeting and for Schools Forum 
to vote to agree to make a transfer of 0.5% from the schools block to the High Needs 
block for 2021/22 to support the deficit recovery plan at the meeting in January. The 
second area agreed in principle was a 5% increase in the overall special school budget in 
light of the new funding formulas brought in last year; the special schools received theirs 
through the LA unlike the mainstream schools who received theirs though the MFG or 
NFF and this led to a further inequity. SCC propose to use the money to bridge the gap 
between some of the banding that schools receive. For instance, one secondary school 
has dire financial pressure would be able to attract funding more in line with their feeder 
school. 
 
Slide 5 illustrated the increasing pupil numbers of complexity in Southampton from 
approximately 600 EHCP’s in 2010 and in 2020 it is closer to 1,800 EHCP’s.  As time goes 
on there is an increase at the top end due to the extension of the legislation. 
 
Slide 6 The graph demonstrated that although Southampton has seen a significant 
increase it is still lower than other LA’s for the rates per 10K. There is an assumption 
made that Southampton LA are generating too many EHCP’s although compared to other 
LA’s Southampton are low, this suggests that Southampton expects to see the pressures 
continue to rise.  
 
Slide 7 illustrated the high needs per capital compared to similar areas nationally, the 
graph shows Southampton as one of the lower cost cities and that they can expect to see 
the surge continue. 
 
Slide 8 showed the forecast numbers and it is clear that the challenge of EHCP’s will 
remain. 2010 to 2019 showed the year on year increase, the plateau is not expected to be 
reached for a while. If this progresses on the same trajectory in 2020 the pressures will 
continue. Although the government have given Southampton money for 2020, 2021, and 
2022 this it does not help with the financial pressures experienced from 2014 to 2019 and 
the continuing pressures from 2020 to 2024 onwards.   
 
Slide 9 show the predicted number in mainstream schools and specialist settings. 
MM asked the basis of the assumption regarding the growth in the next 10 years and 
acknowledge that Southampton is now identifying need better. TM advised that the 
calculation was done 3 years ago and so far it has reflected the predictions. This year 
there has been a prediction for the special school places required for 2021 and it is in line 
with the predictions based on the historical growth. Schools are reporting that there is an 
increased complexity of need within children entering school. The children are being 
looked at in detail in the early years and this identified the increasing complexity of need 
and the support they require is continuing. 
 
PH sought clarity on the graph showing the per capital rate compared to similar areas 
nationally and questioned if that was due to Southampton having a low number of EHCP’s 
in special schools opposed to mainstream schools and asked how this compared to other 
areas, did the per capita rate represent the higher and lower percentages in special 
schools. TM noted it was broadly in line although Southampton would soon be above the 

Page 5



 

6 
 

national average and neighbouring rates for percentages in special schools and with more 
in special schools per capital they would be expected it to be higher.  
 
PH advised that the schools receive £10.98 for staff to support these children and this has 
not changed for a number of years and it excludes holidays. It was noted that this amount 
was lower than for grade 6 teaching assistant. TM acknowledged that the figure has 
stayed static and thought that Southampton were one of the more generous LA’s and 
advised that she would check this against other LA’s. TM was aware that Hampshire 
receive £9 per hour although she was unaware if they paid holidays.  
ACTION: PC to benchmark the £10.98 per hour payment for staff supporting SEN pupils 
against other LA’s.  
 
JD noted that this would be useful to have that information for January’s meeting to 
inform the decision and reminded the forum that today’s meeting was focusing on 
informing the consultation. 
 
Slides 9/10 NP explained the cause of the deficit and advised that the capping of the NFF 
in 2016/2017 onwards has contributed to the financial pressure. Every budget provided 
to the LA from the DFE has been capped, it therefore had not met the needs nationally. 
LA’s are seeing an increase in demand both in the number of EHCP and the complexity of 
the EHCP and this is causing huge financial strain. It had been capped to a low percentage 
increase and has made a huge contribution to the deficit issue.  
 
TM noted that the Children’s and Families Act 2014 extended statutory protection from 5-
16 years to 0-25 years with no additional funding. The number of EHCP’s has increased at 
a rate of 12% since 2015 and the projections show that this will continue. There is an 
increased right of parents and in law there are only three reasons SCC can reject a 
preference; not to the age aptitude or ability of the child, the special school states that 
the child does not have the right level of need for the school or whether it is incompatible 
with the efficient use of the public purse or the education of others.  
ACTION: TM to send out Consolation on Proposal for 0.5% transfer from the schools block 
to the high needs block 2021/2021 to head teachers. Action Complete. 
 

  
NP reported that Southampton have received a 17% increase for 2020/2021 with further 
increases in the next two financial years at approximately 12%. Southampton have a 
focused activity on reducing the number of pupils with high needs independent specialist 
placements. However, there is a need to expand the special school placements, this is 
challenging due to a lack of physical space available. This has led to a significant project 
and TM will present proposals in the New Year to go to consultation around the 
expansion and reconfiguration of the local specialist education provision. That will 
increase numbers of the pupil’s placed within the city. The request for capital funding is 
significant in cost and scale although this will not be an easy decision giving the position 
of the LA current budget and the impact of Covid-19. They are also looking at increasing 
the capacity and capability of mainstream schools and have had a big drive on inclusion in 
the mainstream schools ensuring the offer is consistent across the board. The inclusion 
charter and supporting documents will be launched in the Spring/Summer term and will 
enable schools to self-assess to make changes to their provision to meet the needs of the 
continually complex children. 
 

Page 6



 

7 
 

Considering the proposed recommendations TM sought advice from Schools Forum 
regarding how to spit the two items for consultation 

1. around the 0.5% transfer from the schools block funding to the High Needs block. 
2. the issue around the additional 5% uplift funding provided by the DFE for the 

secondary special schools.  
It was thought that for clarity both issues were dealt with separately.   
 
JD acknowledged SP’s comments around the two recommendations and asked the forum 
for their thoughts around the proposal and how it would work to balance the budget 
before moving to the technical decision around if it were to be approved how it would be 
funded. JD noted that the decision need to be agreed or not in January. 
 
RW asked if the projection for the budget 2021/2022 included a pay rise. NP advised that 
the salary costs are quite small as a percentage of the budget and would not necessarily 
make a material difference, he did not have the figures to hand. RW noted that people 
were on a range of pay scales and it would be good to know the amount. NP advised that 
they are building in incremental growth that has not been frozen. JD noted the value of 
having this extraordinary meeting to get a full answer to that question in January when 
the decision will be made. 
 
SP extended his thanks to the LA for to all the hard work the stakeholders have done 
regrading providing information and being open and transparent and to congratulate the 
LA on the work done around sufficiency and cost avoidance. The massive amount of work 
that has been done is now starting to have an impact and will continue to have an impact 
in the future. SP acknowledged that this was a difficult conversation to have and there are 
difficult decisions ahead. JD concurred with SP’s comments and followed by saying that 
informed decisions are always the best form and the quality of the papers and 
information provided and the spirit of transparency has been hugely welcomed, thanks to 
the officers concerned for pulling it together. 
 
JD summarised the issues. In January the question is should Schools Forum agree a 0.5% 
transfer from the schools block to the high needs block and TM presented the issues 
around that. The second issue is that if Schools Forum do agree to that then how should it 
be funded. 
 
NP screen shared a spreadsheet and expanded on the three options on how the ½% 
transfer from the schools block to the high needs block would be achieved. Funding from 
April 2021 to March 2022 NP is using the DFE indicative figures based on the census data 
from 2019 as SCC have not yet received the data for 2020. The APT model used is 
provided by the DFE, this is a prescriptive model with embedded formula although the LA 
can have discretion to change things this year, when SCC moves to the hard NFF where 
the funding is set centrally and changes cannot be made. The budgets have been 
calculated for both last year and this year using the full NFF rates with an aim to have a 
smooth transition to the hard NFF rates when they come in.  
 
The LA has set an MFG for next year’s funding to between a ½ and 2%, the minimum 
funding guarantee (MGF) means schools are guaranteed to get in increase in funding of 
that percentage over and above the eligible criteria year on year. This changes each year. 
The average weighted pupil unit (AWPU) is a calculation for the value for each child that is 
tied up with the minimum pupil funding level that guarantees that each child gets a 

Page 7



 

8 
 

certain amount across the country. AWPU is a per pupil amount and MFG is an overall 
amount for the school. 
 
Option 1: the ½% could be achieved by setting the MFG at 0.78% and leaving other 
factors at the NFF rate. This option would effect 73% of the schools; 49 schools with an 
average adjustment per school of £15,427 reduction. Although there is an average of 15% 
where some schools are affected a lot more and others a lot less, the table shows the 
effect on different schools. 
Option 2: By reducing the AWPU to 99% of the NFF factor; the MFG would increase up to 
1.1%. The benefit was that more schools are contributing to the ½% and that brings down 
the average adjustment per schools to £13,033. 
Option 3: Similar to Option 2, this model was not flexible. However, if the MFG was set at 
1.13%, the AWPU was kept at 0.99% and reduced the lump sum per school down to 90%, 
this gave the same result as Option 2 although the distribution was different. 
 
JR queried the baseline used, NP explained the baseline was the figure provided by the 
DFE for next year although it uses October 2019 census data. The final allocation for next 
year is not in yet and the options are worked out on indicative numbers. The new baseline 
data is expected shortly. 
 
PH queried the effect of schools that do and do not contribute by changing the baseline 
and raised concerns around the schools with the lowest pupil premium appeared not to 
be contributing in all options with the schools with higher pupil premium seem to be 
contributing the most and they are the most in need of the funding. NP acknowledged the 
query and advised that the model is very robust and the formula was set by the DFE and 
cannot be changed.  JD advised that the NFF is about levelling up so the MFG per pupil 
goes up in schools with low characters of children who attract extra funding such as SEN 
and EAL issues. 
 
SP agreed with PH’s and noted that the schools with low need would not contribute 
anything and the schools with high need would contribute a higher amount to support 
that. Although the minimum per pupil funding formula was set by the DFE, disapplication 
requests that can be put through although they are likely to not be accepted. This is an 
issue as when looking at a transfer and if it is agreed SP thought from a personal point 
that every school should contribute as it would seem unfair that the schools with the 
most need and schools most likely to have many SEN pupils were contributing to a SEN 
problem. This needed to be considered when making the decision for the ½% transfer. JD 
agreed that the decision needed to be fair and to consider the impact that will have on 
schools who are most in need. 
 
When asked about schools with reserves NP noted that they are becoming rarer and 
rarer. They were only allowed to commit a small amount of reserves without a plan 
explaining how the reserve will be used. JD suggested that the information was provided 
in the January meeting, NP confirmed that it would be indicative using last year’s 
numbers. DW added that there is a protocol that was agreed at Schools Forum about 
schools in surplus and schools in deficit that was produced by a working party about 18 
months ago and approved by the forum. SP added that schools cannot be selected 
through the formula.   
ACTION: NP to provide information around schools with reserves in the January meeting. 
 

Page 8



 

9 
 

JD invited any further question for NP or TM about the consultation. No additional 
questions were asked. 
  
JD thanked NP and TM for the quality of papers presented this evening. 
 
 

6 AOB                                                                                                     

Dates for academic year 2020 / 21 

 Wednesday 20th January 2021 
 Wednesday 24th March 2021 
 Wednesday 23rd June 2021 

CLOSING REMARKS AND DATE OF NEXT MEETING        
             
JD noted there was plenty of food for thought for members before coming together again 
in January to vote on the consultation that is being conducted with every school and 
governing body at the moment. JD echoed the thoughts that were expressed earlier 
thanking the officers of the LA for the quality and transparency of information provided. 
JD thanked the forum for attending the meeting and for their contributions to the 
discussion. 
 
Day and Date:  Wednesday 20th January 2021 
Time:                 3:45pm to check connectivity before going live for a  
                           4:00pm meeting start 
Venue:              Microsoft Teams meeting and live streamed 
 
JD wished everyone a happy Christmas and New Year, and wished everyone luck. 
 
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - 9th December 2020

